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ADDENDUM 1 

 

 

Request for Proposals to Sublease the Worcester County Shore Spirits Retail Liquor 

Store located on Coastal Highway at 16th Street in Ocean City, Worcester County, 

Maryland 

 Date of Issue: September 28, 2016 

 

Addendum 1 –  

 Pre-bid Inspection Meeting Notes of 9/22/16 – Questions and Answers 
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Pre-bid Inspection Meeting Notes – Questions and Answers: 

September 22, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

16th Street and Coastal Highway – Ocean City 

 

Notes and Clarifications: 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) package was reviewed with interested bidders.   

Worcester County participants in attendance were as follows: 

a. Kelly Shannahan, Assistant Chief Administrative Officer 

b. Laura Burns-Reinhart, Interim Director of Liquor Control 

c. Maureen Howarth, County Attorney 

d. Phil Thompson, Finance Officer 

 

2. Bids are due 11 October 2016.  Bids must be delivered as required or will not be 

considered.  See the documents “Request for Proposals” and Instructions to 

Bidders for details.   

3. Bidders are responsible to check and include all addendums in their proposals. 

4. Existing building areas and site were toured. 

 

5. Questions were taken at the meeting and Answers are as follows: 

a. Can the registers/point of sale system be included in the store’s list of 

assets to convey with the store?   

 

Answer: Yes. The County will clean any data off this equipment prior to the 

transfer. Please see the updated Attachment C- List of Store Assets (attached).  

The value of the registers/point of sale system should be taken into consideration 

in determining the Additional Monthly Lease offered by Bidders. 
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b. Can items on the List of Store Inventory Attachment D be switched out 

for other inventory items of equal value that County has in their 

warehouse inventory? Essentially, can the bidder pick and choose the 

inventory they would like to purchase? 

 

Answer: No. The List of Inventory is a fair representation of what will be sold on 

the date of transfer and may change slightly, however, the County will not allow 

substitution of inventory items.  

 

c. Would the Landlord be willing to eliminate the wall between Store 2 

(retail) and Store 3 (former wholesale)? If the wall cannot be eliminated, 

would the Landlord be open to removal of at least half of the wall? 

 

Answer: The Landlord has stated that the stores are leased “as is” but he will not 

object to layout changes if the changes are approved by the Town of Ocean City 

and particularly by the Ocean City Fire Marshal’s Office. The current separation 

in the layout was for the current uses and was required by the Ocean City Fire 

Marshal.   
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Attachment C  

(Revised 9/28/16) 

 Ocean City Retail Store 

16th Street Retail/Wholesale Store 
 

Furniture & Fixtures 
1 Countertop in front of the store- large half-moon shape 
1 Countertop in back of the store  
2 Countertops on wholesale side of the store 
4 NCR Radiant Systems Point-of-Sale Terminals (Model #P1560-0097-BA) 
1 Small Refrigerator for product display 
1 Large Refrigerator for product display (3 sliding doors) 
1 Large Wine Wall Shelving System 
1 Large Rum/Vodka Wall Shelving System with 4 signs 
1 Small Gin/Tequila Wall Shelving System with 2 signs 
2 Long Free Standing Shelving Systems in the middle of the store  
2 End Free Standing Shelving Systems in the middle of the store 
11 Free Standing Wire Racks in the middle of the store 
4 Tall Free Standing Wire Racks behind the counter in front of the store 
2 Tall Free Standing Wire Racks behind the counter in back of the store 
4 Tall Free Standing Wire Racks in the middle of the store  
15 Tall Free Standing Wire Racks on the wholesale side of the store 
1 Adjustable Shelf in storage room/bathroom 
1 Refrigerator for staff use 
1 Microwave 
1 Desk 
1 Foldable Table 
2 Printers 
2 Faxes 
2 Safes 

 
Leasehold Improvements 

Alarm System with cameras and monitoring screen (Alarm Engineering) 
Tile Flooring 
Carpet behind the counters 
Exterior Signs 

 

Note: The cost of the above furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements to be conveyed with the 
property totals $305,613 and has a current book value of $136,618.  The County is not requiring 
reimbursement for these improvements, but the value should be considered when determining the 
additional monthly lease to be paid by the bidder.  
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